
 

 
 

Polk County Conservation Board Meeting – December 10, 2014 

 
December 10, 2014 - 5:30 p.m. 
 
 
Po lk  Coun ty  Admin i s t ra t ion  B ldg.  
111  Cour t  Avenue,  Room 120  
Des  Moines ,  IA   50309 
 

AGENDA  
 

1) Opening Items 
a) Roll Call 
b) Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

 

2) Public Comments 
3) Consent Agenda Items 

Note:  These are routine items and will be enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless a Board Member, PCCB 
employee or member of the public requests an item be removed to be considered separately.  Please notify a PCCB Member to 
have an item removed. 

a) Action on Bill List:  approve the PCCB November 2014 bill list. 
b) Annual Report, FY 2013-14:  approve the FY 2013-14 Polk County Conservation Board Annual Report.  
c) Clean Air Policy: approve adopting the Clean Air Policy as revised. 
d) User Fees: approve the fee schedules for PCCB services and Jester Park Lodge as presented effective January 1, 2015. 
e) Iowa Dept. of Transportation - State Recreational Trail Grant, Ankeny Connector:  accept the 

grant monies and authorize the Chair to sign the grant document and further instruct staff to proceed with the acquisition of 
the property from the Iowa Natural Heritage Foundation, secure reimbursement from the Iowa Department of Transportation, 
and to begin the process of transferring a section of the old rail line to the City of Ankeny. 

 
4) Fort Des Moines Park Planning & Design 
5) Jester Park Conservation Center, RFP-Fundraising Assessment & Feasibility Study 
6) Acquisition Strategy  
7) Great Western Trail, Water Main & Tunnel Beneath New Maffitt Road Extension 
8) Election of PCCB Officers for 2015 

 
FINANCIAL REPORTS  
DISCUSSION & REMARKS 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The information identified on this agenda may be obtained in accessible formats by qualified persons with a disability. To receive 
information or to request an accommodation to participate in a meeting, hearing, service, program or activity conducted by this office, 
contact the Polk County Conservation Board Office, 11407 NW Jester Park Drive, Granger, 515-323-5300. 

1



1) Opening Items 
 

a) Roll Call 
 
b) Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 
 

The Polk County Conservation Board met in regular session on November 12, 2014.  Minutes for the 
meeting are attached. 
 

2) Public Comments 
 
  
3) Consent Agenda Items 
 

a) Action on the Bill List 
 
November 2014 expenditures have been e-mailed to the Board for review. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve the PCCB November bill list. 
 
 

b) Annual Report, FY 2013-14 
 
Attached is the FY 2013-14 Polk County Conservation Board Annual Report. The report includes 
organizational highlights, financials, and pertinent facts and figures from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 
2014. With board approval, the report will be printed and distributed. Distribution destinations 
include the Polk County Board of Supervisors, PCC website, and by request from the general 
public.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve the FY 2013-14 Polk County Conservation 
Board Annual Report.  

 
 
c) Clean Air Policy 
 
In July 2014 the County revised the Clean Air Policy to include language related to the use of 
electronic cigarettes.  Attached is the revised Clean Air Policy staff is bringing to the Board for 
consideration.  Also attached is Conservation's current Clean Air Policy.  This current policy was 
revised following the State of Iowa passing the Smoke-free Air Act, prohibiting smoking in all public 
places.  Since Conservation buildings, offices, vehicles, etc. are Polk County property it is 
appropriate that the Board adopt the County's Clean Air Policy as revised. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve adopting the Clean Air Policy as revised. 
 
 
d) User Fees 
 
Attached are fee schedules identifying user fees for PCCB services such as camping, facility 
rentals, firewood, trap range rentals, canoe rentals, environmental education programs, 
equestrian center, etc. and the fee schedule for the Jester Park Lodge.  Proposed revisions are 
identified with red text or strikethrough.   Christiani’s is proposing no change to Jester Lodge rental 
rates at this time. 
 
 

2



Changes to the fee schedule include:  
 

• Deleting bulk firewood and dump station fees from the fee list.   
 With Conservation taking over the handling of firewood sales again the occasional 

surplus of firewood that was sold to the public in bulk at one time no longer exists.  
 The dump station fee has always been an "on your honor" fee collected from the 

public and was a fee charged to those campers using our dump station(s) but not 
camping in our campground(s). Because it is not possible for staff to monitor the 
activity at the dump station, the public is trusted to pay the fee.  With this in mind, 
staff recommend removing this from the fee schedule and considering fees 
collected at the dump station as a donation.   Signage would be changed to 
recommend a $10 donation. 

 
• Cabins. 

Due to the high level of amenities provided at the cabins and the need to follow State 
regulations due to the level of amenities provided, cleaning of the cabins has taken more 
time than originally thought.  Staff is proposing a $10/per night increase to the cabin rental 
rates.  A brief survey was sent to 129 previous Jester cabin renters in October.  One of the 
questions in the survey was about increasing the rental rate by $10/night. Of the 61 
responses, 43 indicated they would not be deterred to rent a cabin again if a $10 per night 
increase was implemented.   

 
• Camping 

 The revisions to camping rates was proposed by park staff to make the handling of 
camping payments more efficient.   Park staff frequently seek out campers simply to 
return $1 in change because campers would place a $20 bill in the self registration 
envelope to cover their one night stay at $19 for example.  Prices have not 
changed since 2010.   

 Park staff also recommended doing away with "off-season" rates.  Off-season rates 
apply when the water has been shut off to the shower houses in the campgrounds. 
Campgrounds are open April 1 through November 30 each year.  April 15 and 
October 15 are dates staff use as a guide for turning on or shutting off the water 
each season.  Weather is the factor in determining if the water can be turned on 
sooner than April 15 or shut off later than October 15.  Since the amount of time in 
the camping season the shower houses are without water is minimal, eliminating the 
off-season rates for camping made sense for administration efficiency purposes.  

 
• Trail Rides 

With rising costs of care for horses for public trail riding use over the last several years at the 
Jester Park Equestrian Center, the increased proposal of 15% is reasonable for the expense 
coverage needed. Additionally, from a services perspective, the increase rate of $5 is in 
line with other revenue-based guided trail ride facilities in Iowa. Examples of competitive 
rates include facilities such as: Cedar Valley Stables and Ridgetop Ranch.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board approve the fee schedules for PCCB services and 
Jester Park Lodge as presented effective January 1, 2015. 
 
 
e) Iowa Dept. of Transportation - State Recreational Trail Grant, Ankeny Connector 
 
Last October the Board granted permission to staff to apply for a state recreational trail grant to 
fund the purchase of UP Industrial Rail between Ankeny and Des Moines. 
 
Staff applied for and received a second grant of $782,500 that is equal to the one received last 
year. 

3



 
Last year's grant purchased the section south of Carney Marsh and this grant will complete the 
purchase of the section around and north of the Marsh up to Magazine Road. A portion of this 
section is within the City of Ankeny and it is intended that the portion within City limits be 
transferred to the City for trail development purposes. 
 
The Board must accept the grant as offered by the DOT to receive the funds. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board accept the grant monies and authorize the Chair to 
sign the grant document and further instruct staff to proceed with the acquisition of the property 
from the Iowa Natural Heritage Foundation, secure reimbursement from the Iowa Department of 
Transportation, and to begin the process of transferring a section of the old rail line to the City of 
Ankeny. 
 
 

4) Fort Des Moines Park Planning & Design 
 

PCC staff have held a series of meetings, including an on-site field trip, concerning Fort Des 
Moines Park amenities. We have come up with a set of amenity updates and additions that fit 
the Master Plan for the park.  
 
Shive-Hattery has partial design on most all of these projects, and we wish to complete this 
process on selected projects and move to final design and engineering. Actual contract with 
complete scope will be presented at the PCCB meeting.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  To be made at the meeting. 

 
 
5) Jester Park Conservation Center, RFP - Fundraising Assessment & Feasibility Study 
 

At the November meeting, the Board asked staff to produce and distribute a Request for 
Proposal (RFP) for a fundraising assessment and feasibility study for the Jester Park Conservation 
Center. The attached RFP was distributed to 20 consulting firm contacts in Iowa and surrounding 
states on Thursday, December 4th. Staff generated a comprehensive list of local fundraising 
consulting firms with assistance from the Greater Des Moines Community Foundation, and sent 
out notification to all five Iowa Chapters of the Association of Fundraising Professionals.  
 
RFP submissions are due to Polk County Conservation by December 31, 2014. These proposals will 
be reviewed by staff and a consultant recommendation will be brought to the January 14, 2015, 
Board meeting.    

 
 
6) Acquisition Strategy 
 

Discussion of the criteria to be used to determine when parcels of land should be acquisition 
targets and which designated parcels would further the  mission of the Polk County Conservation 
Board.   
 
STAFF RECCOMENDATION:  That the Board consider the criteria and direct staff as to their 
preferences concerning the current draft criteria. 

 
      - Loren Lown 
        Parks and Natural Areas Administrator 

 
 
  

4



7) Great Western Trail, Water Main & Tunnel Beneath New Maffitt Road Extension 
 

The City of West Des Moines has asked that Polk County again "fast track" a construction project 
that will impact our Great Western Trail (GWT). 
 
There are two impacts that will be of importance to the trail corridor near the SE of the above 
referenced intersection.  The first is a water main required for the new Microsoft development, 
crossing the GWT at Veteran's Parkway and Hwy. 5.  The City has pledged they would have 
water available at the site in the very near future and are asking that Polk County grant them a 
"license" to install the main prior to the easement documentation being processed through the 
PCCB and the Supervisors.  The integrity of the trail and need for trail continuity have been 
discussed, and the trail would stay open at all times.  The second is the Maffitt Road extension.  
Staff has been involved in negotiations with the owner/developer of the property and the City of 
West Des Moines concerning future roads which would negatively impact the continuity of the 
trail.   It is staffs' insistence that there be no at grade crossings which are significantly less safe 
than current conditions.  West Des Moines has agreed that a tunnel beneath the new Maffitt 
Road extension is the preferred alternative and have directed their engineer to prepare design 
documents to include the tunnel. 
 
The City of West Des Moines is requesting a license to proceed with these two projects and to 
return to the PCCB and the Board of Supervisors with the easement documentation and request 
as soon as the exact legal dimensions are determined and the exact requirements are known. 
 
Staff has communicated that we are uncomfortable with fast tracking these developments, and 
while we understand the need for quick action, we also feel it is the responsibility of the PCCB to 
review and approve such requests prior to action by the Board of Supervisors.  It has been 
communicated that future requests of this nature should be limited to emergency situations. 
 
      - Loren Lown 
        Parks and Natural Areas Administrator 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board direct Polk County Conservation staff to work with Polk 
County staff to facilitate a license through the Board of Supervisors for the water main and tunnel 
beneath the new Maffitt Road extension projects related to the Great Western Trail; and the 
Board further directs staff to communicate with the City of West Des Moines that unless the 
request arises from an emergency situation, all future requests for an easement like "license" will 
not be considered outside of the legal easement framework. 
 

 
8) Election of PCCB Officers for 2015 
 

According to the Bylaws there shall be selected preceding the first regular meeting of each 
calendar year, from its members, by its members, a chairperson, a vice-chairperson and a 
secretary, who shall serve as officers of the Board for the calendar year and/or until their 
successors are selected and qualify.  
 
Officers should be officially approved by the PCCB assuming these Board Members are willing to 
serve. 
 

 
 
 
  

5



Polk County Conservation Board 
Polk County Admin. Bldg. 

Room 120 
Des Moines, IA 

 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION BOARD 
 

The Polk County Conservation Board met in regular session on Wednesday, 
November 12, 2014.  The meeting was called to order at 5:33 p.m. 
 
 
#1a – Roll Call 
 
Members Present: Levis, Johnson, Smith, Kurovski 
Members Absent: Cataldo 
 
 
#1b - Action on the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Kurovski to approve the meeting minutes as written. 
 
 VOTE YEA:  Kurovski, Johnson, Levis, Smith 
 
 
#2 – Public Comments 
 
No public comments. 
 
 
#3 – Consent Agenda Items 
 
MOTION: Moved by Levis to approve consent agenda items a and b and to move item 

c off the consent agenda to the regular agenda for Board consideration. 
 a) PCC October 2014 bill list; 
 b) PCC's Travel & Expense Reimbursement Policy as revised; 
 
 VOTE YEA:  Levis, Kurovski, Smith, Johnson 
 
#3c – Land Acquisition 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Smith to ratify action approving and authorizing staff to work with 

the Iowa Natural Heritage Foundation to secure the Kal-Dens Farms parcel 
of land located near Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt and to work with Polk 
County Conservation Board partners to accept contributions and finalize 
ownership of the parcel of land in Polk County's name. 

  
 VOTE YEA:  Smith, Johnson, Levis 
 VOTE NAY:  Kurovski 

6



Board Meeting:  November 12, 2014            2 
 
 
#4 – Public Records, Open Meetings & Competitive Bidding 
 
Candy Morgan, Asst. County Attorney, spoke to the Board on updates to public records 
and open meetings laws.  She also spoke on Iowa Code Chapter 26 that talks about 
bids for work done by employees of the agency.  Information on competitive bidding will 
be brought to a future meeting. 
 
#5 - Jester Park Conservation Center Update 
 
Interim Director Leopold explained to the Board that after he and staff considered 
potential cuts to the Conservation Center project and after discussing funding, a gap of 
approximately $2.25M remained to complete the project. 
 
Following Board discussion, the Board indicated they would like to move forward with 
the full project.  The Board asked Leopold to bring a Request for Proposal to them at 
the December meeting for a third party opinion on the fund raising.  Based on the 
results of the analysis, which the Board hoped to receive at the February or March 
meeting, the Board shall determine if it is feasible to complete the entire project, or if 
cuts may have to be made.  Hiring a fundraising consultant will be considered at this 
time also.  This action means construction would be postponed for approximately a 
year.   
 
#6 – Flood Debris Removal 
 
Mark Dungan, Natural Resources Manager, identified a correction to the writeup for this 
item.  The writeup refers to High Trestle Trail at Beaver Creek, when it should say 
Trestle to Trestle Trail at Beaver Creek. 
 
MOTION: Moved by Levis to approve accepting Reilly Constructions bid of $88,500 to 

cleanup flood debris on both the Chichaqua Valley Trail bridge and Trestle to 
Trestle Trail bridge; and due to the uncertainty of the amount of debris 
removal and disposal involved with the project authorize payment to Reilly 
Construction up to $100,000 from their bid of $88,500 if debris removal and 
disposal is more than estimated.  The Board further approves and authorizes 
the Interim Director to sign the contract with Reilly Construction. Payment for 
this work will be reimbursed to PCCB in the 3rd quarter amendment next 
spring as approved by Mark Wandro. 

 
 VOTE YEA:  Levis, Smith, Johnson, Kurovski 
 
#7 – CBG, State Recreational Trails Grant Application – Truss Bridge 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Kurovski to approve staff applying for a State Recreational Trails 

grant to repair the historic truss bridge at Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt. 
 
 VOTE YEA:  Kurovski, Levis, Johnson, Smith 

7



Board Meeting:  November 12, 2014            3 
 
 
#8 – Budget, FY 2015-16 
 
Carol Ann Carlson, Accountant, reviewed budget handouts she distributed to the Board. 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Kurovski to approve the FY 2015-16 budget as presented for 

submittal to the Polk County Board of Supervisors. 
 
 VOTE YEA:  Smith, Johnson, Kurovski, Levis 
 
 
Discussion & Remarks 
 

 Leopold distributed bond project sheet developed from day spent between PCCB 
staff and Shive Hattery and briefly reviewed with the Board.  Explained a one 
page information sheet would be completed on each project. Shive Hattery would 
be developing these sheets for the projects.  

 
 
Adjournment 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:36 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:  Cindy Lentz 
 
Approved:   

8



ANNUAL REPORT
J U L Y  2 0 1 3  –  J U N E  2 0 1 4

Leading you Outdoors

9



YEAR AT A GLANCE

Polk County Conservation has undergone 
significant revitalization since the passage of the 
Polk County Water and Land Legacy (PCWLL) bond 
referendum in November of 2012. Projects that 
were only a dream on paper prior to PCWLL began 
to take shape in 2013 and 2014. 

In concert with planning for and executing many 
"shovel ready" projects and initiatives, a 
comprehensive Strategic Plan was set in motion in 
January of 2014 that was designed to meet the 
needs of Polk County, its citizens, and our parks, 
trails, and natural areas for generations to come. 
The seven initiatives identified within the plan were 
environmental education, water quality, public 
awareness, natural areas, outdoor recreation, 
watershed management, and trails. These focus 
areas will be a high priority for Polk County 
Conservation throughout the duration of this plan.

Growth of quality environmental education and 
public awareness to effectively expand the outreach 
of conservation goals lies at the forefront of these 
initiatives. Community involvement and education is 
a key element in successfully providing sufficient 
natural spaces for a healthy environment and for the 
individuals within. 

Water quality and local watershed health also 
became a top priority throughout the planning 
process specifically at Easter Lake, Fort Des Moines, 
Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt, and in the Fourmile 
Creek Watershed. Areas of concern have been 
identified and priority is given accordingly in an 
effort to improve upstream behaviors as well as 
assisting adjacent communities, private entities, and 
the public in watershed awareness through 
consistent inventory and monitoring of these areas.

Placing high importance on preservation, 
restoration, and maintenance of county lands has led 
to numerous key property acquisitions which are 
consistent with several conservation goals. In 
addition to improved water quality through 
watershed management and expanded wildlife 
habitat, promotion of a diversity of trails and unique 
access features throughout county lands has 
granted park users with a variety of recreation 
immersion and engagement opportunities. 

Projects and initiatives will continue to evolve in 
accordance with priorities of Polk County 
Conservation and the public we serve. The Polk 
County Water and Land Legacy bond referendum, 
guided by solid planning and community input, has 
provided the means by which these goals are met 
along with the support of local citizens and partners 
in the community. 

Father and son enjoying an afternoon fishing on the restored 
pond at Thomas Mitchell Park.

10



ANNUAL HIGHLIGHTS

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Polk County Conservation welcomed  several
new faces to its ranks this year. Richard Leopold 
accepted his role as the Deputy Director in July 
of 2013. Gary Halbersma signed on as 
Construction Maintenance Supervisor in July of 
2013. Nick Gordon filled a Natural Resources 
Technician position in June of 2014. Also, the 
Jester Park Equestrian Center brought aboard 
Lela Mullen in August of 2013 as the Equestrian 
Center Manager, and Shellie Carmoney in June 
of 2014 as the Equestrian Program Specialist.

In January of 2014, a new 5-year strategic plan 
was rolled out by the Polk County 
Conservation Board. The initiatives within this 
5-year strategic plan include focus on 
environmental education, water quality, 
public awareness, protection and preservation 
of natural areas, outdoor recreation, 
watershed management, and promotion of a 
diversity of trails within the county. 

RECREATION ENHANCEMENT 

Jester Park cabins offer guests a place to relax in a beautiful 
woodland setting with close proximity to recreational opportunities.

Jester Park hosted a Summer Kick-Off 
Celebration in June 2014. This event marked 
the grand opening of the Jester Park rental 
cabins. Park guests participated in canoeing 
and fishing on the newly renovated Discovery 
Pond, strolled along the new accessible trail 
and toured the cabins now open for 
reservation. 

Thomas Mitchell Park underwent significant 
enhancements. A half-mile natural surface trail 
was constructed around the pond as well as 
shade structures and accessible fishing piers. 
Limestone steps were installed at various points 
throughout camp creek to improve recreational 
access to the water. 

Phase I of the Mark C. Ackelson Trail at Easter 
Lake reached completion in the fall of 2013. 
Summer 2014 saw the beginning of Phase II.  
This enhancement will provide park users and 
local residents with enhanced recreational 
opportunities and lake access. This trail will 
eventually be a part of the larger connected 
trail network between Ewing Park and Easter 
Lake, and the larger regional trail between 
downtown Des Moines and Carlisle. 

Construction on a new 2.5 mile connection of 
the Gay Lea Wilson Trail from Ankeny to Altoona 
reached completion. This trail is part of a 110 
mile loop through central Iowa that connects 
existing parks, trails, and businesses in five 
counties. In addition to this trail connection, 
sections of the creek in the Fourmile Greenbelt 
have been stabilized. 

       Any projects that have been funded fully or in part by Polk County Water & Land Legacy throughout this document are denoted by the PCWLL logo water droplet                

•

•

11



RECREATION ENHANCEMENT (CONT’D)
Contracts were secured to begin construction
on the Chichaqua Valley Trail Connection. 
Upon completion, this extension will connect 
trail users from Baxter to Des Moines.

Available for the 2014 camping season, 
Campground #2 at Jester Park upgraded its 28 
sites to full electric amenities in order to 
accommodate a higher demand for electric 
sites.

EDUCATION & OUTREACH
• The 2014 Master Conservationist program

wrapped up their 7th session held within Polk
County in May. This course covered a variety
of topics relating to Iowa’s natural resources
and environmental health. The program
offered certification through Iowa State
University and encouraged participants to
partake in volunteerism related to local
conservation efforts.

• Polk County Conservation entered into a
television and online partnership with Mills
Fleet Farm. This example of public and private
organizations coming together under similar
interests demonstrates a shared effort to extend
our outreach to a wider audience to provide
access to outdoor recreation and appreciation
of Polk County's natural resources.

• The Environmental Education Department was
awarded a REAP/CEP grant for $20,170.
“Discover Your Watershed” ranked first out of
eleven other grants. It was praised by the review
board for great partnerships, working with high
school students, and for the place-based
education.

• PCC launched accounts with Twitter, Pinterest,
YouTube and has created a monthly blog to
help stay connected with the public. These
social media outlets are in addition to the
Facebook account the Conservation team
already manages.

ANNUAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Chichaqua Valley Trail Connection will extend trail 
accessibility throughout Polk and Jasper County.

Planning and design of a new outdoor 
classroom began on the south end of Fort Des 
Moines park adjacent to Studebaker 
Elementary. This feature will provide a setting 
for environmental education and 
programming.

Master Conservationists studying a unique Iowa landscape 12



ANNUAL HIGHLIGHTS

LAND PROTECTION AND RESTORATION
Several properties were acquired by Polk 
County Conservation for the purpose of 
improved water quality, wildlife habitat 
protection, environmental education and 
outdoor recreation. These acquisitions include 8 
acres at Thomas Mitchell Park, 22 acres at 
Yellow Banks Park, three locations adjacent to 
Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt totaling 180 
acres, and 24 acres along the High Trestle Trail 
from Ankeny to Des Moines.

Polk County Conservation has become an 
active player in the Fourmile Creek Watershed 
Management Authority. Enhancements both up 
and downstream to the Fourmile Creek 
Watershed have been on-going in an effort to 
improve water quality and flood control.

Restoration at Fort Des Moines Park's 14-acre 
pond began in an effort to improve recreational 
opportunities and quality of habitat. This 
popular urban fishing spot had experienced 
diminished performance due to siltation. Pond 
dredging, shoreline stabilization, and the 
construction of silt basins, rock checks and sills, 
and wetlands were a variety of methods used 
during this restoration process.

Stabilization of the streambed and the inclusion 
of erosion control along Camp Creek at Thomas 
Mitchell Park were done in conjunction with 
recreation and access enhancements. This 
project has fulfilled several goals in the areas of 
water quality, protection of aquatic habitat, and 
reinforcement of park infrastructure.

Ongoing restoration efforts have provided excellent 
habitat for wildlife resulting in successful fledging of 
Sandhill Cranes at Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt. 

Fort Des Moines Park underwent pond restoration to improve water 
quality, fisheries health, and outdoor recreation opportunities.

INFRASTRUCTURE 
Ongoing enhancements continued at the Yellow 
Banks Park dam and pond area to improve 
access and recreational opportunities to the 
pond. The outlet and overflow structures will be 
replaced, and the top of the dam will be lowered 
eight feet to improve accessibility to the water.

13



ANNUAL HIGHLIGHTS

RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT
Polk County Conservation entered into a 
contract with Shive-Hattery that provided 
essential program management services 
related to Polk County Water and Land Legacy 
planning and project development. 

In a joint contract with the Iowa Department of 
Natural Resources and as part of the Easter Lake 
Watershed Management Plan, property was 
acquired near Easter Lake to facilitate 
upcoming lake and watershed restoration 
strategies. This area will serve as valuable 
public land and wildlife habitat within the Des 
Moines River Greenbelt in future years. 

The future Conservation Center at Jester Park will serve as a 
gateway for outdoor recreation and education in Polk County.

A new trailhead parking lot was constructed at 
Brown's Woods. Work also began to expand the 
nature trails in the park. Future amenities will 
include a restroom, drinking fountain, and kiosk 
station for park information and environmental 
education.

INFRASTRUCTURE (CONT'D) 

Funds dedicated to enhancements at Thomas Mitchell Park have 
provided visitors with improved recreational opportunities.

A vehicular access bridge across Camp Creek at 
Thomas Mitchell Park was installed to separate 
shared foot and vehicular crossing. The former 
crossing will continue to be utilized for 
pedestrian crossing, while the new bridge will 
serve as a safe means for traffic to travel between 
the east and west sides of the park.

Planning and design for the Jester Park 
Conservation Center continued and preliminary 
site preparation took place. Fundraising to 
supplement bond contributions will continue in 
an effort to make this project a success.

A new Jester Park entrance road was 
constructed on the west end of the park off NW 
128th Ave. Once open to the public in the future, 
this new entry will provide park users with 
improved access to the park and the Jester Park 
Conservation Center. 

14



FINANCIAL STATEMENT

GRANTS
The following are grants and reimbursements awarded during FY 13-14. The annual amounts listed are the 
award totals. Depending upon the grant specifics, the award may be received in one year or over a multi-
year period. 

$135,000 
$560,000
$338,000

MPO TAP-Ackelson Trail Phase III (Easter Lake)
MPO TAP-Ackelson Trail Phase II (Easter Lake) 
MPO-Ackelson Trail Phase III (Easter Lake)
LAWCON-Fort Des Moines Classroom 
REAP-CEP Discover Your Watershed

$103,437

REVENUE
 REVENUES: Insurance Reserve REAP Bond Golf Course TOTALSGeneral Basic General Supp.

$2,981,087  $926,771   $116,120  $-  $-  $-  $-  $4,023,978 
613,841 0 0 0 0 0 0          613,841
62,692 0 0 0 0 0 0 62,692

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
14,282 0 0 90,302 0 379,187 0 483,770
11,971 0 0   25,963 0 1,644,387 0 1,682,320

 103,902 0 0 0 0 0 0 103,902
161,163 0 0 0 0 0 8,400 169,563

1,540 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,540
17,361 0 0 0 0 0 0 17,361

2,092 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,092
259,006 0 0 0 0 0 0 259,006

 210 0 0 0 0 0 0 210
  3,630 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,630
12,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,000
55,129 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,129

2,376 0 0 0 0 0 200,194 202,570
80,296 0 0 0 0 0 0 80,296

       4,182 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,182
       0 0 0 0 5,272 139,073 0 144,345

  2,302 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,302
    7,697 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,697

0 0 0 0 156,461 0 0 156,461
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 8,749,918 0 8,749,918

           0          0 0 0 0 0 0 188,319

Property Taxes
Recreational Fees
Concessions
Environmental Protection Agency Grants 
Miscellaneous Federal Grants
Miscellaneous State Grants & Reimbursements 
Land Rent
Building & Shelter Rentals
Equipment & Machinery Rentals
Firewood Sales
Miscellaneous Sale of Commodities
FEMA
Service Fees
Miscellaneous Contributions & Reimb. Other Govts 
General Administration Fees
Fee Based Program Revenues
Commissions
Easements
Motor Vehicle Fuel Refunds
Miscellaneous Contributions & Donations 
Miscellaneous Reciepts
Fixed Assets Sold
Recoveries on Losses
REAP Annual Per Capita Payment
REAP DNR Fishing & Hunting Grant
Bond Revenues
Transfers in from Golf Course
Fund Interest 

129,425 32,040 0 26,854 0 0 0 1,875

 TOTAL REVENUES  $4,526,182  $958,811  $116,120  $143,119  $161,873  $10,912,565  $210,329  $17,028,998 
0 0 0 0 140 0 1,735 1,875

$20,170
State Rec Trail-Ankeny/HTT Connector
Iowa Ornithologist Union-Barn Owl Nest Boxes 
at Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt

$782,500

$200

State Rec Trail-Ankeny/HTT Connector $100,000
Greater Des Moines Community Foundation 
for Jester Park Conservation Center

$100,000

15



FINANCIAL STATEMENT

EXPENDITURES

BUDGET SUMMARY
The General Basic funds expended for the various departments covered salaries, supplies, and services. The 
General Supplemental funds covered employee benefits.  The Insurance expenditures were for 
Unemployment Insurance, Workers’ Comp Disability, Workers’ Comp Medical Expense, and Liability Insurance 
premiums.

Projects completed or continued with the Reserve funds were radio upgrades for all vehicles and a tank-less 
water heater for the Jester Park Lodge.  Polk County Conservation Board continues construction and repairs 
of trails throughout Polk County.

Projects completed or continued with REAP (Resource Enhancement and Protection) funds were way finding 
signs throughout all our parks, equipment purchases, new fencing and barn upgrades at the Jester Park 
Equestrian Center, support of a naturalist’s salary for wildlife research, plus various smaller projects 
throughout all areas.  We also received a REAP CEP Grant, Discover Your Watershed, for the education of high 
school students on watershed knowledge and management.  We also supported various 28E agreements 
including the Easter Lake-Yeader Creek Watershed and the High Trestle Trail Legacy Fund.

Projects completed or continued with the Polk County Water and Land Legacy (PCWLL) dollars have 
been highlighted throughout the annual report by the blue water drop designation.

Polk County Conservation continually monitors revenues and expenses to assure budget compliance.  In 
addition, a user fee committee annually reviews the various direct user charges for camping, shelter rentals, 
educational programs, special events, and other fee based activities to assure that a fair mix of user fee 
charges and general Polk County taxpayer support is maintained in the annual budget.              

EXPENDITURES: Insurance Reserve REAP Bond Golf Course TOTALS

Conservation Infrastructure/Equipment

General Basic General Supp.  

$162,200  $-  $-  $-  $-  $-  $-   $162,200 
Environmental Education 384,140 107,294 0 0 0 0 0 491,434
Natural Resources 708,342 210,435 0 0 0 0 0 918,777
Administration 970,774 137,373 0 0 0 0 0 1,108,147
Community Outreach 216,991 50,044 0 0 0 0 0 267,035
Conservation Grants     9,036 0 0 0 0 0 0     9,036
Parks Advocacy 470,452 143,665 0 0 0 0 0 614,117
Construction, Maintenance, Operations 1,116,349 239,758 0 0 0 0 0 1,356,107
Equestrian Center 487,899 70,242 0 0 0 0 0 558,140
Insurance, Unemployment, & Workers Comp. Medical 0 0 116,120 0 0 0 0 116,120
Conservation Land Acquisition & Development 0 0 0   25,951 0 0 0   25,951
Resource Enhancement & Protection 0 0 0 0 147,469 0 0 147,469
PCWLL Bond 0 0 0 0 0 10,912,565 0 10,912,565
Golf Course Transfer to Operations & Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 188,319 188,319
Golf Course Minor Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0   6,638   6,638

TOTAL EXPENDITURES   $4,526,182   $958,811   $116,120    $25,951   $147,469  $10,912,565   $194,957  $16,882,055 

16



FACTS AND FIGURES

PARK VISITATION (WHERE RECORDED)

70,112
17,657
51,041
10,530

481,181
177,716

1,170
37,396
32,858
41,047

Brown’s Woods 
Carney Marsh 
Chichaqua Bottoms Greenbelt 
Chichaqua Valley Trail 
Easter Lake Park 
Fort Des Moines Park  
Four Mile Creek Greenbelt  
Gay Lea Wilson Trail 
Great Western Trail 
High Trestle Trail 
near PCC gazebo area

Jester Park  460,518
includes Mile Long Boat Ramp, Golf Course, Equestrian Center and Lodge

Mally’s Park  16,646
Thomas Mitchell Park 127,656
Trestle to Trestle Trail 23,711
Yellow Banks Park 251,501

TOTAL PARK VISITATION*  1,800,740+
*PCC is unable to accurately calculate total park visitation from traffic counters. 
The estimated visitation total of 1,800,740 people reflects only those 
parks equipped with counters or alternative ways for tracking visitation.

RENTAL FACILITY RESERVATIONS

         96 
290
 111
249
114

5
110

Chichaqua Longhouse  
Easter Lake Park (Shelters #1-#5) Fort 
Des Moines Park (Shelters #1-#2) Jester 
Park (Shelters #2-#6)  
Jester Park Lodge 
Mally’s Park 
Thomas Mitchell Park (Shelters #1-#2) 
Yellow Banks Park (Shelters #1-#4)  88

TOTAL FACILITY RESERVATIONS 1063

ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION

• 1,172 school programs involving 23,139 students
• 197 youth programs involving 4,019 youth
• 5 public camp programs involving 69 youth
• 66 adult programs involving 2,407 adults
• 81 family programs involving 3,391 participants
• 6 bus trips involving 294 participants

VOLUNTEER HOURS CONTRIBUTED

14,000 hours in total 
Estimated value: $245,000 

Wells Fargo employees lending a hand at the 2014 
River Run Garbage Grab volunteer event.

The Environmental Education staff connected with 
various audiences for a total of 43,145 hours. 

17



UNIT DIRECTORY

Polk County Conservation Administration Office
11407 NW Jester Park Drive  
Granger, IA 50109  
tel: (515) 323-5300
fax: (515) 323-5354
pccb_info@polkcountyiowa.gov 
www.leadingyououtdoors.org

Administration      
Richard Leopold, Interim Director
Loren Lown, Parks & Natural Areas Planning Adminr.
Carol Ann Carlson, Accountant  
Cindy Lentz, Administrative Supervisor 
Melissa Ritter, Accounting Clerk  
Ginny Malcomson, Accounting Clerk

Community Outreach 
Kami Rankin, Community Outreach Supervisor
Pat Spain, Planning and Outreach Coordinator

Environmental Education 
Patrice Petersen-Keys, Environmental Ed. Coordinator 
Heidi Anderson, Naturalist 
Lewis Major, Naturalist  
Joe Boyles, Naturalist  
Lori Foresman-Kirpes, Naturalist

Natural Resources 
Mark Dungan, Natural Resources Manager 
Doug Sheeley, Natural Resources Supervisor 
Ron Ugolini, Natural Resources Technician 
Chris Lunan, Natural Resources Technician 
Al Pasker, Natural Resources Technician 
Dan Hrubes Natural Resources Technician
Nick Gordon, Natural Resources Technician
Lael Neal, Natural Resources Worker

Board Members
Sara Kurovski
Tom Levis
Connie Johnson
Mike Smith
Jim Cataldo

Parks Advocacy  
Dean Bruscher, Ranger 
Brian Herrstrom, Ranger 
Charlie Finch, Ranger
Chris Clingan, Assistant Ranger 
James Dotzler, Assistant Ranger

Construction, Maintenance,  and Operations 
Wayne Johnson, Construction & Maintenance Manager
Gary Halbersma, Construction & Maintenance Supr. 
Stan Manning, Special Services Technician 
George Lentz, Equipment Maintenance Superintendent
Ken Young, Mechanic
Luke Harshbarger, Mechanic
Steve Haefner, Construction Technician
Barney Feezell, Construction Technician
Tim Wears, Maintenance Technician
Tyler Naeve, Maintenance Technician
Chance Patrick, Maintenance Technician

Leisure Services
Lela Mullen, Equestrian Center Manager 
Shellie Carmoney, Program Specialist 

(Current as of December 2014)

18



CLEAN AIR POLICY 
 
*THIS DOCUMENT IS ADOPTED FROM POLK COUNTY POLICY. REFERENCE TO POLK 
COUNTY OR COUNTY INCLUDES POLK COUNTY CONSERVATION BOARD. 
 

These rules apply to all employees and visitors that enter grounds of County-
owned or leased buildings and offices including parking lot areas. 

 
1. Vending machines that contain cigarettes or other smoking tobacco will 

not
 

 be permitted on County-owned or leased property. 

2. Smoking, including the use of electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes or vapor), 
electronic vaping devises, personal vaporizer (VP), and/or electronic 
nicotine delivery systems (ENDS) will be prohibited at all times on the 
grounds of any public owned building, any building leased by Polk 
County, or any building operated by or under the control of Polk County, 
except as designated below. 
 

3. No smoking areas will include: 
 

a. All buildings owned, leased, or controlled by Polk County; 
 
b. All County-owned trucks, automobiles and equipment at any time. 

   
 4. Designated smoking areas shall be limited to the following: 
 

a.  Designated areas on County owned or leased parking lots.   Smoking in 
parking lots of public buildings shall not interfere with the ingress or egress of 
any public owned building, any building leased by Polk County, or any 
building operated by or under the control of Polk County. 

 
 b. Smoking in personal vehicles on County owned or leased parking lots 

shall be allowed. 
 
5. Department heads/elected officials and managers are responsible for 

ensuring and actively maintaining compliance within their respective 
departments/offices. 

 

19



20



21



22



23



Jester Park Equestran Center - updated December 2014
Prices

BOARDING
FULL CARE/ INSIDE STALL $400/Month
Includes 10' by 10' stall, hay & grain twice a day, daily turnout daily stall 
cleaning, free use of the trails and arenas.

OUTSIDE BOARDING
Paddocks with grain & hay twice a day $275
Paddocks with just hay $225

OVERNIGHT BOARDING
10' by 10' Stall, provides own buckets and feed $25/night

ARENA RENTAL
8 hours $450.00
Over 8 hours $500
Ride horse in the indoor arena $15/hour

OUTSIDE ARENA
Daytime , 8 hours $275
Lights included $25
Ride horse in the outdoor arena $10/hour

CONFERENCE ROOM 
Conference room, Full day $80
Conference room, 2 hours $30
Inside patio area (heated), 2 hours $30
Inside patio area (not heated), 2 hours $20
Kitchen no use of stove and/or oven, 2 hours $25
Kitchen using stove and/or oven, per day $50

RIDING LESSONS
One hour, Private $40
One hour, Group $35/person
Lesson Package: Buy 5 lessons, get 6th lesson free $200
Lesson Package: Buy 5 lessons, get 6th lesson free $175
Tiny Tots Lesson (under age 8), 40 minutes $30
Pleasure Driving Lesson, one hour $40
Therapeutic Driving Lesson $30
Therapeutic riding lessons $30/person

Rides:

Trail Rides  (ages 8 and over)
$30/person 
$35/person

Trail Use Fee (Assist with trail maintenance fees)
Free-Will 
Donation

Pony Rides, 20 minute ride $15/child
Birthday Parties: 
Basic Package $15/child 
Deluxe Package $20/child 
Premium Package $25/child
Wagon & Sleigh Rides, 1 to 5 people, 1 hour ride $50
Wagon & Sleigh Rides, each add'l person (max 10) $10/person

TEAMBUILDING
Half day session with certified personal trainer. Conference room $75/person

24



CAMPS
Weekly Camp Session $225
(Mon.-Fri. 9 am- 2pm)

JPEC 1/2 Day Camp Session $130
(Tues.- Thurs from 9 am to Noon) 
Overnight Camp $350.00
Mon. 9 am- Fri. 3 pm with overnights at JPEC) 
Adult Camp Sessions 
Thurs. 3pm-7pm, Fri. 9 am-3pm, Sat. 9 am- 3pm) $200.00

MISC. CHARGES
Exercise Package $75
Training Ride, 1/2 hr. $20
Holding fee for Vet $5
Holding fee for Farrier $10
Administering Meds (Deworming) $5
Additional Care Needs $10/month
Open Shelter Reservation, Full-Day $50
Open Shelter Reservation, 1/2 Day $30
Livestock Trailer, Parked On Site $30/month

SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS: 

Package 1 $15/person
Package 2 $20/person
Package 3 $30/person 
Service Project Discount (2 hrs of service work) $10/person

MERCHANDISE:
Merchandise is usually sold at the suggested retail price or 10% less. It depends what the 

SPECIAL EVENTS:
Fees for special events such as Snowball Express, Sweetheart Sleigh Rides, will be determined 
based on expenses associated with the event. 

25



1 

 

Request for Proposal for Fundraising 
Assessment and Feasibility Study for the 
Jester Park Conservation Center 
RFP #2014-008 

 
Polk County Conservation 
11407 NW Jester Park Drive 

Granger, Iowa 50109 
www.leadingyououtdoors.org 

 
 
CLOSING DATE FOR PROPOSALS 
4:30 PM CST Monday, December 31, 2014 
Submit proposal via mail to Polk County Conservation at the address below on or before 
the closing date: 
c/o – Rich Leopold, Interim Director 
Polk County Conservation 
11407 NW Jester Park Drive  
Granger, Iowa 50109 
(515) 323-5300 
 
REGISTRY OF INTERESTED PROPOSERS  
In order to provide updates and any addenda to this Request for Proposal, please register by 
email to the contact below.  

 
CONTACT  
For any questions concerning this RFP or the selection process, contact via email 
Rich Leopold at rich.leopold@polkcountyiowa.gov.   
  
Polk County Conservation is soliciting proposals from qualified fundraising consultants for 
fundraising assessment and feasibility study for the proposed Jester Park Conservation Center 
near Granger, Iowa. 
 
Your firm is one of several which has been selected to receive this RFP and is invited to submit a 
proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26

mailto:rich.leopold@polkcountyiowa.gov


2 

 

The information in the RFP is organized as follows: 
 

1. Introduction 
2. Organizational Background 
3. Project Background 
4. Purpose & Project Scope 
5. Turn Key Schedule and Timeline 
6. Proposal & Fundraising Requirements 
7. Selection Process 
8. Addendums 

 
 1. Introduction 

Polk County Conservation (PCC) manages 20 park and wildlife areas that are visited by 
more than 1.8 million people each year. These public recreation areas cover more than 
13,000 acres in the state’s most populous county. Jester Park has been one of central 
Iowa’s favorite outdoor playgrounds since 1958. This 1,834-acre park on the western 
shore of Saylorville Lake offers camping, picnicking, equestrian, and golfing in a quiet 
country setting just a half-hour from downtown Des Moines. 

At the heart of Central Iowa, Jester Park Conservation Center will serve as the state’s 
premier conservation center. As a place where education and tourism intersect, this 
facility will provide unparalleled value to Polk County and its partners. 

The Jester Park Conservation Center will be located just inside a newly relocated main 
entrance to Jester Park. Immersed in prairie, the Center will be connected to wetlands, a 
pond, and woodlands by means of hiking trails. The Center’s upper level will be home to 
Conservation headquarters where the public can have immediate access to staff, 
resources, and interpretive areas. The lower level will serve as an educational area for 
natural history, recreation, and a gateway to the great outdoors.  

2. Organizational Background 

The Polk County Conservation Board (PCCB) was created by the voters of Polk County in 
1956 to acquire, develop, and maintain areas devoted to conservation and public 
recreation.  

The Polk County Conservation Board’s mission is to provide the citizens of Polk County 
with quality outdoor recreation, conservation education, and long term protection of 
Polk County’s natural heritage. 

 

27



3 

 

Polk County Conservation (PCC) has some of the best parks and wildlife areas in the 
State of Iowa, with a wide variety of recreational opportunities including 20 parks and 
trails, a championship golf course, an Equestrian Center, the Jester Park Elk/Bison 
Educational Plaza and Natural Playscape, playgrounds, 18 picnic areas, two enclosed 
rental facilities, numerous open air shelters, and four rental cabins. 
  
Polk County's population is predominantly comprised of residents in urban areas and of 
family households (64.5%) -- over 30% of which have children under the age of 18. 
There is a significant population of adults ages 25-44 (27.2%), adults ages 45-64 (25.2%), 
and seniors 65 years and older (22.2%).  Of the residents living in urban areas, the 
largest numbers reside in Des Moines (206,688), Ames (60,634), West Des Moines 
(59,296), Ankeny (49,080), Johnston (18,728), and Waukee (15,931).  
 
One of PCC's most significant functions is environmental education programming 
conducted at many PCC facilities, natural areas and in private and public facilities such 
as schools. More specifically, in the 2012/2013 program year, PCC's Environmental 
Education Unit conducted programs for 32,892 individuals including youth, adults and 
families.  The Environmental Education staff provided 1,474 programs for youth in 10 
schools districts throughout Polk County. Additionally, 9,886 Polk County community 
members attended environmental education programs offered on the weekends and 
evenings.   
 
Our experienced and knowledgeable Environmental Education Unit continues to reach 
an ever-increasing audience with an ever-increasing demand for environmental 
education.  With this demand for programming comes the need for a centralized 
conservation center. A Conservation Center was proposed through the Jester Park 
master planning public input process to provide valuable, free or low-cost 
environmental education resources to fulfill increased environmental education 
programming demands.   
 
Polk County Conservation is a statewide and regional leader in conservation, outdoor 
recreation, and environmental education but has never had a facility that showcases 
this. The Jester Park Conservation Center will enhance education excellence, 
demonstrate conservation and sustainable design, serve as a significant tourist 
attraction and community resource, and provide a safe haven to park users during 
severe weather.  
 
3.  Project Background 
 
Synopsis of Jester Park Conservation Center fundraising efforts in 2013-2014 
The proposed 24,000 square foot Jester Park Conservation Center will serve as a 
welcome station, interpretative center, promoter of public health and STEM (Science, 
Technology, Engineering, and Math) education, and administrative headquarters for 
Polk County Conservation. The Center's vision is on citizen engagement with diverse 

28



4 

 

natural systems through quality environmental education and outdoor recreation. It will 
serve as a discovery portal where people of all ages can actively and passively 
experience Iowa's natural heritage. The Center will come alive through diverse and 
dynamic stories about our natural world and the role we play to sustain that world. 
Stories about water, natural systems, sustainability, and outdoor health and recreation 
will engage youth, families, and adults.  
 
Polk County Conservation has secured $6.25 million in funding to date for the 
Conservation Center project. The Polk County Water & Land Legacy bond referendum 
will provide $4 million of the $6.25 million. A Vision Iowa CAT grant for $970,000 was 
secured in July of 2014.  Additionally, major financial contributions have been pledged 
by corporations, individuals, foundations and city governments. Some major 
contributors include Bob Jester, Principal Financial Group, EMC Insurance, Casey's, 
Scheels, Wells Fargo, the Community Foundation of Greater Des Moines, and others.    
 
We believe that a more comprehensive public fundraising campaign can garner more 
financial support for the project. The total project cost is estimated at $11 million 
dollars. Therefore, we anticipate needing to raise an additional $5 million dollars.  
 
4. Purpose and Project Scope 
 
PCC is requesting submissions from qualified fundraising consultants to complete a 
Fundraising Assessment for the proposed Jester Park Conservation Center. 
 
The purpose of this Request for Proposal is to obtain a Fundraising Consultant who will: 
  
Task 1: Conduct a fundraising assessment to date 

 Historic and current fundraising efforts 

 Review documents and provide analysis 

 Provide recommendations from the fundraising audit 

 Provide Strategic Action Steps for future fundraising 

 Provide Executive Summary of Strategic Business Plan 
 
Task 2: Conduct a Campaign Feasibility Study  

 Determine feasibility of a $5 million dollar campaign goal 

 Assist in development of a compelling case for support statement  

 Community Receptivity & Potential for Support 
• Cultivation and Engagement strategies 
• Standards of Giving table 

 Assist in development of Leadership Fundraising Council 
 
We expect 25% of the time will be utilized for the fundraising assessment to date and 
75% of the time will be utilized for a Campaign Feasibility Study. 

29



5 

 

5.  Turn Key Schedule/Timeline 
 
Our timeline is to conclude the fundraising assessment/feasibility study by March 1, 
2015.  The preliminary schedule for the campaign is:  

 January 14, 2015 -  Consultant recommendation taken to Board meeting for 
approval 

 January 15, 2015 -  Contract Negotiation & Execution with approved consulting  
firm 

 January 15 to March 1, 2015- Fundraising Assessment  

 March 2, 2015 - Fundraising assessment reports completed and submitted to PCC 

 March 11, 2015 - Fundraising Assessment presented to PCC Board by Director 
 
6.  Proposal and Fundraising requirements 
 
Respondents must furnish one original and 3 copies of their proposal. The proposal, 
with estimated price and terms for services, should be provided listing breakdown of 
scope of services in a marked sealed envelope. Please address the following areas in 
your proposal: 

a) Cover letter stating experience of firm and why your firm would be vested in this 
type of project;  

b) Experience of staff who will work on this campaign; 

c) Experience in similar assessment/feasibility  projects; 

d) Proposed fundraising assessment strategy;  

e) Expectations of Polk County Conservation staff;  

f) Proposed schedule/timeline; and 

g) Firm Portfolio. 

 
7.  Consultant Selection 
 
Any bid received after the time and date specified shall not be considered. Proposals 
may be opened by Polk County Conservation at any time after the submission deadline. 
All proposals satisfying the requirements of this Request for Proposal will be evaluated 
to establish which best fulfill the needs of Polk County Conservation and this project. 
Polk County Conservation anticipates entering into a contract to execute the proposed 
work and make a decision as to which firm has been selected by January 15, 2015.  
 
Proposals will be evaluated and scored by Polk County Conservation key staff in its sole 
discretion based on the following criteria:  
 

a) Demonstrated experience of staff to be assigned to the campaign  

b) Firm’s understanding of similar projects and local government 

30



6 

 

c) Campaign strategy’s fit with PCC operations  

d) Demonstrated experience of the firm to do a turn-key project in the allotted 
time frame 

 
PCC Staff may or may not choose to conduct telephone, online, or in person interviews. 
Following proposal scoring, the top ranked firm, including the staff to be assigned to this 
campaign, will be invited to an interview at the PCC Administration Office. Upon 
selection of a finalist and PCC Board approval, PCC will enter into contract negotiations. 
Unsuccessful respondents will be notified as soon as possible.  
 
8.  Addendum 
 
 A.  Architectural Rendering of the proposed Jester Park Conservation Center 
    (see attachment) 

31



U
N

IT
 #

U
N

IT
R

ev
en

ue
 

B
ud

ge
t

To
ta

l 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
B

al
an

ce
 

D
ue

%
 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
G

en
er

al
 - 

Fu
nd

 1
02

12
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

02
13

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

13
,1

08
$ 

   
   

   
  

(8
,1

08
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
26

2.
2%

60
06

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l E
d

62
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
6,

27
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

56
,2

30
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
.0

%
60

09
N

at
ur

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

81
,7

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
5,

05
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

76
,6

56
$ 

   
   

   
 

6.
2%

61
01

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
18

0,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

65
,9

35
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
4,

66
5

$ 
   

   
   

36
.5

%
61

03
Co

m
m

un
ity

 O
ut

re
ac

h
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

0%
61

04
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
Gr

an
ts

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
0%

61
10

Pa
rk

s A
dv

oc
ac

y 
U

ni
t

41
0,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

0,
47

9
$ 

   
   

   
18

0,
32

1
$ 

   
   

   
56

.1
%

61
19

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n/

M
ai

nt
.

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

99
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(9
9)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

0%
61

24
Eq

ue
st

ria
n 

Ce
nt

er
31

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
6,

34
8

$ 
   

   
   

20
8,

65
2

$ 
   

   
   

33
.8

%
Su

b-
To

ta
l -

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
1

1,
05

5,
86

0
$ 

   
   

42
7,

54
3

$ 
   

   
   

62
8,

31
7

$ 
   

   
   

40
.5

%
R

EA
P 

- F
un

d 
26

02
11

R
es

ou
rc

e 
En

ha
nc

em
en

t
15

6,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
17

1,
66

1
$ 

   
   

   
(1

5,
26

1)
$ 

   
   

   
10

9.
8%

R
es

er
ve

 - 
Fu

nd
 5

0
02

10
-0

21
4

Sp
ec

ia
l P

ro
je

ct
s

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!

02
10

W
at

er
 &

 L
an

d 
D

ev
 &

 T
ra

ils
2,

81
2,

30
0

$ 
   

   
22

1,
81

1
$ 

   
   

   
2,

59
0,

48
9

$ 
   

   
0.

0%
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
 - 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
4,

02
4,

56
0

$ 
  

82
1,

01
5

$ 
   

  
3,

20
3,

54
5

$ 
 

20
.4

%

20
14

- 2
01

5 
R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

t
- a

s 
of

 1
1/

30
/1

4 
(4

1.
67

%
 o

f b
ud

ge
t y

ea
r e

xp
ire

d)

B
on

d 
- F

un
d 

51

32



U
N

IT
 #

U
N

IT
Ex

pe
ns

e 
B

ud
ge

t
To

ta
l 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

B
al

an
ce

 
R

em
ai

ni
ng

%
 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

G
en

er
al

 - 
Fu

nd
 1

02
12

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
#D

IV
/0

!
02

13
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

15
8,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
98

,4
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
60

,0
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

62
.1

%
60

06
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l E

d
38

3,
90

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

17
7,

08
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
20

6,
82

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

46
.1

%
60

09
N

at
ur

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

66
6,

10
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
31

7,
64

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

34
8,

45
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
47

.7
%

61
01

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
1,

06
9,

43
9

$ 
   

   
   

47
6,

85
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
59

2,
58

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
.6

%
61

03
Co

m
m

un
ity

 O
ut

re
ac

h
21

5,
95

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

80
,1

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

13
5,

78
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
37

.1
%

61
04

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Gr
an

ts
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
,6

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

(4
0,

67
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

#D
IV

/0
!

61
10

Pa
rk

s A
dv

oc
ac

y 
U

ni
t

46
5,

61
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
18

0,
07

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

28
5,

53
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

.7
%

61
19

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n/

M
ai

nt
.

1,
11

8,
67

4
$ 

   
   

   
50

3,
95

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

61
4,

72
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
45

.0
%

61
24

Eq
ue

st
ria

n 
Ce

nt
er

41
6,

85
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
29

3,
23

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
3,

61
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
70

.3
%

Su
b-

To
ta

l -
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

1
4,

49
5,

03
6

$ 
   

   
  

2,
16

8,
15

1
$ 

   
   

 
2,

32
6,

88
5

$ 
   

   
   

48
.2

%
G

en
er

al
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l -

 F
un

d 
2

Al
l U

ni
ts

B
en

ef
its

 (I
PE

R
S/

FI
C

A/
In

s,
 E

tc
.)

1,
01

9,
91

1
$ 

   
   

  
41

0,
08

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

60
9,

82
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
40

.2
%

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t -
 F

un
d 

3
61

00
In

su
ra

nc
e,

M
ed

., 
W

or
k.

 C
om

p.
96

,3
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

54
,1

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

42
,1

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
56

.2
%

R
EA

P 
- F

un
d 

26
02

11
R

es
ou

rc
e 

En
ha

nc
em

en
t

14
7,

85
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

8,
30

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

39
,5

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
73

.2
%

R
es

er
ve

 - 
Fu

nd
 5

0
02

10
-0

21
4

Tr
ai

ls
, S

pe
ci

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s

49
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
24

,6
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
46

5,
39

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

5.
0%

B
on

d 
- F

un
d 

51
02

10
W

at
er

 &
 L

an
d 

D
ev

 &
 T

ra
ils

4,
11

0,
67

8
$ 

   
   

  
3,

15
2,

56
6

$ 
   

   
 

95
8,

11
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
76

.7
%

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 - 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

10
,3

59
,7

81
$ 

 
5,

91
7,

86
5

$ 
  

4,
44

1,
91

6
$ 

   
 

57
.1

%

20
14

- 2
01

5 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
B

ud
ge

t
- a

s 
of

 1
1/

30
/1

4 
(4

1.
67

%
 o

f b
ud

ge
t y

ea
r e

xp
ire

d)

33



D
EC

EM
B

ER
JU

N
E

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L
A

C
TU

A
L

G
R

A
N

T
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L

SU
B

-
2

0
1

3
 B

O
N

D
2

0
1

5
 B

O
N

D
C

O
ST

S
C

O
ST

S
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

M
IS

C
EL

LA
N

EO
U

S
R

EV
EN

U
ES

 A
N

D
C

O
ST

S
B

A
LA

N
C

E

LE
D

G
ER

P
R

O
JE

C
T

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

D
O

N
A

TI
O

N
S

TO
 D

A
TE

R
EM

A
IN

IN
G

C
0

5
-R

0
0

3
G

A
Y 

LE
A

 W
IL

SO
N

 T
R

A
IL

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 (
D

SM
-A

N
K

EN
Y)

5
0

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
7

8
7

,5
8

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
5

4
,6

4
4

$
   

   
   

   
7

6
0

,1
0

5
$

   
   

   
   

7
7

,0
3

2
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(7
8

2
,2

1
3

)
$

   
   

   
   

5
4

,9
2

5
$

   
   

   
  

(4
,3

2
5

)
$

   
   

   
   

C
0

6
-6

1
3

4
C

B
G

 S
H

A
W

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

4
3

0
,9

1
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

8
9

,7
7

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
(2

5
8

,8
6

0
)

$
   

   
   

   
4

3
0

,9
1

5
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
0

8
-6

1
4

2
JE

ST
ER

 P
A

R
K

 C
A

B
IN

S 
6

8
7

,8
9

4
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
8

6
,3

1
6

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
8

6
,3

1
6

$
   

   
   

1
,5

7
8

$
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

1
-6

2
0

5
C

V
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
-B

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y 
TO

 B
O

N
D

U
R

A
N

T
3

6
,8

1
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
1

,9
3

5
,7

6
9

$
   

   
  

1
7

4
,0

9
1

$
   

   
   

   
1

,4
0

0
,9

8
5

$
   

   
  

1
1

3
,7

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
1

7
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
,5

1
4

,9
1

0
$

   
  

(1
7

8
,0

9
2

)
$

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
1

3
C

B
G

 W
EL

L 
R

EP
LA

C
EM

EN
T

7
3

,8
5

9
$

   
   

   
   

  
7

1
,7

4
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

1
,7

4
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

,9
6

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

3
,8

5
9

$
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
1

4
C

B
G

 O
B

SE
R

V
A

TI
O

N
 D

EC
K

8
3

,8
4

4
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
7

4
,5

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8

5
,7

8
5

$
   

   
   

  
(1

,9
4

1
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
1

2
-6

2
1

8
JP

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

B
LD

G
 R

EL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
4

5
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
8

3
,9

0
3

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
8

3
,9

0
3

$
   

   
   

6
6

,0
9

7
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
1

9
EC

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

1
0

,6
7

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

,5
5

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,1

1
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

0
,6

7
1

$
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
2

0
4

-M
IL

E 
C

R
EE

K
 B

A
N

K
 S

TA
B

IL
IZ

A
TI

O
N

3
4

0
,7

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
2

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

,3
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

0
,3

0
9

$
   

   
   

  
3

2
0

,4
1

6
$

   
   

   

C
1

2
-6

2
2

1
JP

 C
O

N
SE

R
V

A
TI

O
N

 C
EN

TE
R

2
,4

0
4

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
3

6
,9

2
2

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
0

5
,2

4
5

$
   

   
   

   
3

,9
5

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
6

1
,0

2
0

)
$

   
   

   
   

3
4

8
,1

8
0

$
   

   
   

2
,0

5
6

,0
2

0
$

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

2
C

B
G

 M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
1

0
6

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

8
,3

6
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8

7
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8
7

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

3
A

C
K

EL
SO

N
 T

R
A

IL
 P

H
A

SE
 I 

(f
kn

 E
L 

Tr
ai

l P
h

as
e 

I)
1

,1
0

0
,5

3
2

$
   

   
   

9
0

3
,7

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
1

7
6

,1
0

8
$

   
   

   
   

9
0

3
,7

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
1

7
6

,1
0

8
$

   
   

   
   

3
,7

6
2

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
,0

8
3

,6
5

1
$

   
  

1
6

,8
8

1
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

4
A

C
K

EL
SO

N
 T

R
A

IL
 P

H
A

SE
 II

 (
fk

a 
EL

 T
ra

il 
P

h
as

e 
II)

1
4

1
,0

1
3

$
   

   
   

   
1

,0
4

3
,2

3
8

$
   

   
  

2
0

5
,6

5
8

$
   

   
   

   
4

5
4

,1
8

8
$

   
   

   
   

1
8

5
,4

7
6

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

3
9

,6
6

4
$

   
   

   
(4

9
8

,6
5

1
)

$
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

5
A

C
K

EL
SO

N
 T

R
A

IL
 P

H
A

SE
 II

I (
fk

a 
EL

 T
ra

il 
P

h
as

e 
III

)
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

5
9

,5
3

4
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

1
,0

4
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
1

,0
4

6
$

   
   

   
  

(1
1

,0
4

6
)

$
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
2

6
FD

M
 P

O
N

D
 IM

P
R

O
V

EM
EN

TS
 &

 S
ED

IM
EN

T 
B

A
SI

N
8

5
4

,9
0

3
$

   
   

   
   

7
2

3
,9

8
9

$
   

   
   

   
1

3
2

,2
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

7
2

0
,8

6
9

$
   

   
   

   
1

3
6

,0
3

6
$

   
   

   
   

2
1

,9
1

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
0

0
,0

0
0

)
$

   
   

   
   

6
7

8
,8

1
8

$
   

   
   

1
7

6
,0

8
5

$
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
2

7
FD

M
 P

A
R

K
 IM

P
R

-S
H

EL
TE

R
/T

R
A

IL
S/

P
EN

IN
SU

LA
8

1
,1

7
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

9
,2

4
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5

6
,6

6
2

$
   

   
   

   
  

3
,2

9
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
9

,9
5

8
$

   
   

   
  

2
1

,2
2

1
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

8
JP

 P
A

R
K

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

-C
A

M
P

 A
R

EA
 #

2
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

4
1

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
3

3
6

,9
4

5
$

   
   

   
   

2
9

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
3

3
6

,9
4

5
$

   
   

   
   

2
8

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

5
,5

1
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
8

1
,2

6
1

$
   

   
   

2
8

,7
3

9
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
2

9
H

TT
 C

O
N

N
EC

TO
R

 T
O

 G
LW

 (
fk

a 
N

ea
l S

m
it

h
)

9
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
3

0
TM

 C
A

M
P

 C
R

EE
K

 S
TA

B
IL

IZ
A

TI
O

N
1

,0
9

7
,4

6
5

$
   

   
   

8
7

6
,6

6
5

$
   

   
   

   
1

9
4

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

8
0

5
,7

4
3

$
   

   
   

   
1

9
4

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

1
1

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,0
0

0
,4

5
6

$
   

  
9

7
,0

0
9

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

1
TM

 P
A

R
K

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

&
 S

H
O

W
ER

 H
O

U
SE

1
1

9
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
3

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
3

,1
2

3
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

2
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,2
0

5
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
5

2
,1

4
4

$
   

   
   

  
6

6
,8

5
6

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

2
YB

 P
A

R
K

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

8
7

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
6

,6
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
0

,4
0

4
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

1
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
0

,5
1

8
$

   
   

   
  

4
6

,4
8

2
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

3
TR

A
IL

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

 A
LL

 A
R

EA
S

1
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
2

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

1
,2

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
2

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

3
,2

2
8

$
   

   
   

  
7

6
,7

7
2

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

4
JP

 E
N

TR
A

N
C

E 
R

EL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
5

8
6

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
7

9
,8

3
9

$
   

   
   

   
7

3
,0

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

2
7

9
,8

3
9

$
   

   
   

   
6

9
,7

4
3

$
   

   
   

   
  

3
,1

8
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
5

2
,7

6
8

$
   

   
   

2
3

3
,2

3
2

$
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
3

5
C

B
G

 W
O

O
SL

EY
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
-N

O
 S

A
LE

1
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
3

6
C

B
G

 M
EN

D
EN

H
A

LL
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
6

7
6

,2
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
7

6
,2

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

7
6

,2
6

7
$

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
3

7
C

X
T 

V
A

U
LT

 T
O

IL
ET

S
7

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
4

,1
3

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

4
,1

3
3

$
   

   
   

  
1

0
,8

6
7

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

8
C

B
G

 W
ET

LA
N

D
S 

D
ES

IG
N

1
0

4
,4

7
6

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8
6

,4
7

6
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
7

,2
2

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

7
,2

2
1

$
   

   
   

  
3

7
,2

5
5

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

2
-6

2
3

9
YB

 D
A

M
 R

EP
A

IR
S

7
9

7
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
7

7
5

,9
6

4
$

   
   

   
   

1
1

2
,5

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
7

7
5

,9
6

4
$

   
   

   
   

1
1

2
,5

0
7

$
   

   
   

   
9

,6
2

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8

9
8

,0
9

7
$

   
   

   
(1

0
1

,0
9

7
)

$
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
4

0
B

EA
V

ER
 C

R
EE

K
 L

A
N

D
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
9

3
,4

6
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

5
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9
3

,0
1

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

3
,4

6
9

$
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
4

2
R

O
A

D
 &

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T 
R

ES
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 A

LL
 A

R
EA

S
2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
9

5
,9

5
1

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
9

5
,9

5
1

$
   

   
   

4
,0

4
9

$
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

3
C

A
M

P
 C

R
EE

K
-M

IL
LE

R
/R

IS
T 

LA
N

D
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
3

4
2

,1
9

7
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
4

2
,1

9
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3

4
2

,1
9

7
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

4
C

B
G

 A
IR

P
O

R
T 

1
6

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

7
5

,5
8

8
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7

5
,5

8
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
5

,5
8

8
$

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

5
YB

 A
LI

TZ
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
2

9
8

,9
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
9

8
,9

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

9
8

,9
5

0
$

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

2
-6

2
4

6
C

B
G

 F
R

EE
LA

N
D

 L
A

N
D

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

2
0

4
,4

3
7

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

0
4

,4
3

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
0

4
,4

3
7

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

7
C

B
G

 A
IR

P
O

R
T 

6
0

 L
A

N
D

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

2
3

8
,6

8
7

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

3
8

,6
8

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
3

8
,6

8
7

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
ct

o
b

er
 3

1
, 2

0
1

4
 

P
C

W
LL

 E
X

P
EN

D
IT

U
R

ES
 A

S 
O

F 
:

34



D
EC

EM
B

ER
JU

N
E

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L
A

C
TU

A
L

G
R

A
N

T
A

C
TU

A
L

A
C

TU
A

L

SU
B

-
2

0
1

3
 B

O
N

D
2

0
1

5
 B

O
N

D
C

O
ST

S
C

O
ST

S
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

M
IS

C
EL

LA
N

EO
U

S
R

EV
EN

U
ES

 A
N

D
C

O
ST

S
B

A
LA

N
C

E

LE
D

G
ER

P
R

O
JE

C
T

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

IS
SU

A
N

C
E

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TE
D

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

D
O

N
A

TI
O

N
S

TO
 D

A
TE

R
EM

A
IN

IN
G

O
ct

o
b

er
 3

1
, 2

0
1

4
 

P
C

W
LL

 E
X

P
EN

D
IT

U
R

ES
 A

S 
O

F 
:

C
1

2
-6

2
4

8
C

B
G

 E
V

ER
LY

 P
R

O
P

ER
TY

-N
O

 S
A

LE
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L 
O

N
LY

1
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-6

2
4

9
B

R
O

W
N

'S
 W

O
O

D
S 

TR
A

IL
H

EA
D

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

9
0

,7
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
4

8
,3

2
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

1
,4

1
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

3
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
6

,5
4

6
$

   
   

   
  

5
4

,1
5

4
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

2
-6

2
5

0
YB

 P
R

EI
ST

 P
R

O
P

ER
TY

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

1
,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

2
-9

9
9

9
M

IS
C

 M
IN

O
R

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

7
8

,6
3

3
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

,1
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
4

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

0
,1

9
3

$
   

   
   

  
5

8
,4

4
0

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

3
-6

2
5

1
O

V
ER

A
LL

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T
4

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

7
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

6
,3

9
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
6

,3
9

9
$

   
   

   
  

3
,6

0
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

2
-9

9
9

9
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

&
 S

U
P

P
LI

ES
2

9
1

,3
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
9

1
,3

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

9
1

,3
6

7
$

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
1

3
-6

2
5

2
EL

 L
O

D
G

E 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
3

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

3
-6

2
5

3
TM

 A
C

C
ES

SI
B

LE
 T

R
A

IL
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 P

O
N

D
1

7
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

9
0

,3
5

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

9
4

,3
5

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
9

,9
6

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

6
4

,3
1

4
$

   
   

   
1

0
,6

8
6

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

3
-6

2
5

4
TM

 O
V

ER
LI

N
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
7

4
,2

5
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7
4

,2
5

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

4
,2

5
7

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

3
-6

2
5

5
M

A
LL

Y'
S 

ST
R

EA
M

B
A

N
K

 S
TA

B
IL

IZ
A

TI
O

N
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
0

0
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

3
-6

2
5

6
P

C
W

LL
 P

U
B

LI
C

 A
W

A
R

EN
ES

S
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
,0

3
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
,0

3
9

$
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,0

3
9

)
$

   
   

   
   

C
1

3
-6

2
5

8
N

A
TU

R
A

L 
A

R
EA

 R
ES

TO
R

A
TI

O
N

S
2

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
,4

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8
,4

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
1

,5
1

9
$

   
   

   
  

C
1

3
-6

2
5

9
JP

 C
A

M
P

 S
TO

R
E

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
,2

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,2
0

0
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
1

3
-6

2
6

1
A

N
K

EN
Y 

H
TT

 E
X

TE
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
 D

SM
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

,2
6

1
,2

9
9

$
   

   
   

 
(1

,3
8

2
,5

0
0

)
$

   
   

   
8

7
8

,7
9

9
$

   
   

   
2

1
,2

0
1

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

3
-6

2
6

2
EL

 J
.C

. W
H

IT
E 

P
R

O
P

ER
TY

1
8

7
,6

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

7
9

,8
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
(9

2
,2

0
9

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
1

8
7

,6
8

5
$

   
   

   
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

C
1

3
-6

2
6

3
M

A
LL

Y'
S 

C
V

T 
&

 G
LW

 T
R

A
IL

 C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,1
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

2
5

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,3
5

5
$

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,3
5

5
)

$
   

   
   

   

C
1

3
-6

2
6

5
YB

 B
A

N
E 

P
R

O
P

ER
TY

2
3

8
,3

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

3
8

,3
2

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
3

8
,3

2
5

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
1

4
-6

2
6

8
EL

 D
IK

ES
/D

R
ED

G
IN

G
/W

A
TE

R
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

2
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
5

3
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
5

4
,3

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

5
4

,3
0

8
$

   
   

   
(1

2
9

,3
0

8
)

$
   

   
  

C
1

4
-6

2
6

9
FD

M
 O

U
TD

O
O

R
 C

LA
SS

R
O

O
M

1
1

,2
0

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
,9

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

,6
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
3

,6
0

1
$

   
   

   
   

 

C
1

4
-6

2
7

0
EL

 C
O

V
ER

ED
 B

R
ID

G
E 

IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

4
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
5

7
,2

2
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

,8
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

,8
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

 
3

7
,1

3
3

$
   

   
   

  

C
1

4
-6

2
7

1
C

B
G

 K
A

L-
D

EN
 F

A
R

M
S 

P
R

O
P

ER
TY

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
4

3
,3

6
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

4
3

,3
6

0
$

   
   

   
(1

4
3

,3
6

0
)

$
   

   
  

EL
 R

A
IN

 G
A

R
D

EN
S

1
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

  

LA
N

D
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
S

2
4

6
,3

2
3

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

4
6

,3
2

3
$

   
   

   

U
P

 A
N

K
EN

Y-
H

TT
 C

O
N

N
EC

TO
R

-A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

G
LW

 T
R

A
IL

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 T
O

 M
A

LL
Y'

S
3

3
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
3

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
3

,9
6

9
,6

8
0

$
   

   
2

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
  

7
,9

3
1

,4
1

2
$

   
   

  
3

,4
6

5
,9

3
8

$
   

   
  

7
,9

9
7

,4
5

9
$

   
   

  
2

,2
9

1
,3

4
3

$
   

   
  

6
,1

3
0

,6
8

2
$

   
   

   
 

(2
,9

7
8

,0
0

8
)

$
   

   
   

1
3

,4
4

1
,4

7
7

$
   

2
,7

2
8

,2
0

3
$

   
  

35


	December 2014 attachments.pdf
	Clean Air Policy.pdf
	Clean Air Policy

	Jpec user fees.pdf
	Equestrian Center

	November 2014 Revenue-Expense Report.pdf
	Nov 2014
	November 2014 Revenue Report.pdf
	Nov 2014






